
 
 

 

Members are summoned to attend this meeting 
Barry Quirk 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Tuesday, 11 April 2017 

 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

MAYOR AND CABINET 
(CONTRACTS) 

 
 

Date: WEDNESDAY, 19 APRIL 2017 at 5.50 pm 

 
Committee Rooms 1 & 2 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
Enquiries to: Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327 
Telephone: 0208 314 9327 (direct line) 
Email: kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Sir Steve Bullock Mayor L 
Councillor Alan Smith Deputy Mayor - Growth & Regeneration L 
Councillor Chris Best Health, Well-Being and Older People L 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia Resources L 
Councillor Janet Daby Community Safety L 
Councillor Joe Dromey Policy and Performance L 
Councillor Damien Egan Housing L 
Councillor Paul Maslin Children & Young People L 
Councillor Joan Millbank Third Sector and Community L 
Councillor Rachel Onikosi Public Realm L 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

 

The public are welcome to attend our Committee meetings, however, occasionally, committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 
 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Declaration of Interests 
 

1 - 4 

2.   Minutes 
 

5 - 8 

3.   Main Grants 2017-18 - London Boxing Allocation 
 

9 - 17 

4.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

18 - 19 

5.   Provision of Passenger Transport Services 
 

20 - 34 

6.   New Homes Programme Update Former Edward Street MUGA 
 

35 - 177 

7.   Award of Contract of Young People's Health and Wellbeing Service 
 

178 - 204 

   



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\8\6\ai00016686\$zmnfilyy.doc 

 

 

MAYOR & CABINET (CONTRACTS) 
 

Report Title 
 

Declarations of Interests 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No. 1 
 

Ward 
 

n/a 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: April 19 2017 

 
 
 
 
 Declaration of interests 
 
 Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on 
 the agenda. 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct :-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 
 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 

gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\8\6\ai00016686\$zmnfilyy.doc 

 

 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register 
the following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which 

you were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to 
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence 
of public opinion or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be 
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close 
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area 
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of 
Members’ Interests  (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school 
at which a Member’s child attends).  

 
 

Page 2



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\8\6\ai00016686\$zmnfilyy.doc 

 

(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 
 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity  and in any 
event before the matter is considered.  The declaration will be recorded 
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary 
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter 
and withdraw from the room before it is considered.  They must not 
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the 
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an 
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a 
fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event 
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, 
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless 
paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest.  If so, the member must 
withdraw  and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would 
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to 
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a 
registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests.  These are 
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk 
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such 
interest need not be registered.  Members with such an interest are referred to 
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

  
(7) Exempt categories 
 

Page 3



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\8\6\ai00016686\$zmnfilyy.doc 

 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing 
so.  These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the 

matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears 
exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a 
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor 
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or 
of which you are a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)  Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 4



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\8\6\ai00016687\$i3wxstri.doc 

 

MAYOR AND CABINET (CONTRACTS) 
 

Report Title 
 

Minutes 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No. 
 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: April 19 2017 

 
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended that the minutes of that part of the meeting of the Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) which were open to the press and public, held on March 22 2017 be confirmed 
and signed as a correct record. (copy attached). 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MAYOR AND CABINET 
(CONTRACTS) 

Wednesday, 22 March 2017 at 5.40 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:   Sir Steve Bullock (Chair), Councillors Alan Smith, Chris Best, 
Kevin Bonavia, Janet Daby, Joe Dromey, Damien Egan, Paul Maslin, Joan Millbank and 
Rachel Onikosi. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Alan Hall, Councillor Jim Mallory and Councillor John 
Muldoon. 
 
 
34. Declaration of Interests 

 
Councillor Janet Daby declared a prejudicial interest in Item 3 as her husband  
held a contract with Family Health and she withdrew from the meeting during  
consideration of that item. 
 

35. Minutes 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on February 15 and March  
1 2017 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

36. Libraries Savings Programme  approval of preferred provider for Manor 
House 
 
The report was introduced by Councillor Chris Best who highlighted Appendix  
1 of the report which confirmed V22 Foundation was based in the UK. 
 
The Executive Director for Community Services representative reported an  
addendum had been tabled with a third recommendation pertaining to an  
operating agreement.  
 
Councillor Bonavia asked if a failure by the V22 Foundation to obtain  
charitable status should be a termination event and was informed by the  
Executive Director for Community Services this was not crucial and had not  
formed part of the specification. She believed that the existing status of the  
V22 Foundation as a not for profit organisation gave grounds for a positive  
recommendation. 
 
A local ward member, Councillor Jim Mallory, advised the Mayor the Lee  
Green Assembly had set up a Stakeholder Group representing several local  
groups including the Friends of Manor House Library. He stated there was still  
a concern that the breadth of offer for community use was not as flexible as  
hoped for. 
 
Having considered an open officer report, and presentations from the Cabinet  
Member for Health, Well Being & Older People, Councillor Chris Best, and by  
Councillor Jim Mallory, a local ward member, Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts),  
for the reasons set out in the report: 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 6



 
 
 

2 

RESOLVED that: 
 
(1) V22 Foundation be approved as the preferred partner for Manor House; 
 
(2) authority be given to the Executive Director for Resources and  
Regeneration to negotiate and agree the terms of a 25 year lease as outlined  
for the Manor House Library building and grounds to enable the provision of a  
community library in partnership with the council; and 
 
(3) authority be given to the Executive Director for Community Services to  
negotiate and agree the terms of an operating agreement for the provision of  
community library services at the Manor House Library building. 
 

37. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,  
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of  
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt  
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act,  
as amended by the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to  
Information) (Amendments) (England) Regulations 2006 and the public  
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in  
disclosing the information:- 
 
5. Lewisham Construction Hub Contract 
6. Ashmead and Addey & Stanhope School Expansions 
7. Bill Payments Services Contract 
 

38. Lewisham Construction Hub Contract Award 
 
Having considered a confidential officer report, and a presentation from the  
Deputy Mayor, Councillor Alan Smith, Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts), for the  
reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that the contract for Lewisham Construction Hub Services be  
awarded as follows: 
 
Lot 1 - Construction Training, Apprenticeship and Employment Service to  
Lewisham Southwark College along with 
 
Lot 2 - Local Construction Supply Chain Development Service to BE Group  
for a period of 3 years. 
 

39. Ashmead and Addey & Stanhope Part 2 
 
This item was adjourned and discussed at the conclusion of the Mayor &  
Cabinet meeting which considered a report presenting the outcome of the  
consultations on the expansions at these two schools. 
 
Having considered a confidential officer report, and a presentation from the  
Cabinet Member for Children & Young People, Councillor Paul Maslin, Mayor  
and Cabinet (Contracts) for the reasons set out in the report: 

Page 7



 
 
 

3 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
(1) the procurement route to be used in order to deliver the capital works for  
the expansion of Ashmead Primary School and Addey and Stanhope School  
be noted 
  
(2) the indicative total budget to deliver the works be noted on the  
understanding that a further report will be presented for the award of the  
construction contracts at stage two of the Design and Build process. 
 
(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Resources and  
Regeneration to enter into a Pre-Construction Services Agreement for each  
scheme and that these ‘PCSAs’ will form stage one of the proposed two-stage  
Design and Build process that will be used to deliver both schemes. 
 

40. Bill Payments Services Contract 
 
Having considered a confidential officer report, and a presentation from the  
Cabinet Member for Resources, Councillor Kevin Bonavia, Mayor and Cabinet  
(Contracts) for the reasons set out in the report: 
 
RESOLVED that the contract for Bill Payment Services be awarded to  
Capita Business Services Limited for an initial period of three years, with  
possible extensions for periods up to a further 2 years at a stated total value. 
 
The meeting closed at 6.06pm and reconvened at the close of Mayor and  
Cabinet to consider Item 6. 
 

Page 8



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\0\9\6\ai00016690\$3ghruaw3.doc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date of Meeting 19 April 2017  

 

Title of Report 

 

Main Grants 2017/18 – Boxing allocation to London Sport 

 

Originator of Report Petra Marshall – Community Resources 

Manager 
Ext. 47034 

 

At the time of submission for the Agenda, I confirm 

that the report has:  
Category     Yes          No 

Financial Comments from Exec Director for Resources x  

Legal Comments from the Head of Law x  

Crime & Disorder Implications x  

Environmental Implications x  

Equality Implications/Impact Assessment (as appropriate) x  

Confirmed Adherence to Budget & Policy Framework x  

Risk Assessment Comments (as appropriate)   

Reason for Urgency (as appropriate)   

    

Signed      Executive Director  
Date               03.04.17 

  

Signed      Cabinet Member 

Date        03.04.17        

 
Control Record by Committee Support 

Action Date 

Listed on Schedule of Business/Forward Plan (if appropriate)  

Draft Report Cleared at Agenda Planning Meeting (not delegated decisions)  

Submitted Report from CO Received by Committee Support  

Scheduled Date for Call-in (if appropriate)  

To be Referred to Full Council  
 

Chief Officer Confirmation of Report Submission        
   
Report for:  Mayor  

Mayor and Cabinet     

Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) 

Executive Director 
Information      Part 1        Part 2        Key Decision 

 

X 

 X  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
 
1.  Purpose  

 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to seek agreement for the allocation of Main Grant 

 funding to London Sport for 2017-18 for boxing provision.  
 
2.  Recommendations  
 
2.1 It is recommended that Mayor and Cabinet (Contracts) agree:  
 

 the award of £15,000 to London Sport for 2017/18. 

 
3. Policy Context  
 
3.1 Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-2020, ‘Shaping our Future’, sets 

out the borough’s ambitions to encourage development, enable citizens to live 
healthy lives and to empower Lewisham’s communities to prosper. It has six strategic 
priorities, including a commitment to creating a borough that is “Empowered and 
Responsible: where people are actively involved in their local area and contribute to 
supportive communities”. 
 

3.2 The empowered and responsible strand of the strategy highlights the importance of 
the community and voluntary sector in all areas of public life. It recognises that the 
sector plays a significant part in Lewisham’s ongoing success. This is reflected in 
Lewisham’s corporate priorities: “Community leadership and empowerment: 
developing opportunities for the active participation and engagement of people in the 
life of the community”.  
 

3.3 Lewisham has a strong history of working with the voluntary and community sector 
and empowering residents and communities. Lewisham is fortunate to have a strong 
and thriving sector which ranges from very small organisations with no paid staff 
through to local branches of national charities. The sector includes charities, not for 
profit companies limited by guarantee, faith organisations, civic amenity societies as 
well as social enterprises. There are estimated to be around 800 community and 
voluntary sector organisations in the borough. 
 

3.4 What all these organisations have in common is their ability to bring significant 
additional value to the work that they do through voluntary support and raising funds 
from sources not available to other sectors such as charitable trusts. In addition they 

MAYOR AND CABINET (Contracts) 

Report Title Main Grants 2017/18 – Boxing allocation to London Sport  

Key Decision Yes Item No.  

Ward All 

Contributors Executive Director for Community Services, Head of Law 

Class Part 1 Date: 19 April 2017 

Page 10



often provide services that the Council cannot easily provide; create links between 
communities and people; and give people a voice.  
 

3.5 As well as being directly involved in delivering services to citizens in the borough, 
third sector organisations also provide the essential infrastructure to allow the sector 
as a whole to develop and support individual citizens to be able to play an active role 
within their local communities.  
 

3.6 Lewisham was the first London Borough to develop a Compact with the third sector in 
2001. The compact seeks to support a positive relationship between the sector and 
key statutory partners. It includes expectations around the management of grant aid 
as well as broader partnership working principles. The compact was further 
developed in 2010 with the addition of guidelines for commissioning with the third 
sector in recognition of the important contribution that the third sector should play in 
identifying needs as well as potentially delivering service solutions. 
 

3.7 Although the third sector’s role within the commissioning of local public services 
continues to grow the council recognises that there continues to be a need for grant 
aid investment for the following reasons:  

 a recognition of the importance of maintaining an independent sector that can act 
as a critical friend to challenge public sector policy and delivery.  

 a recognition of the key role that the sector plays in building civic participation, 
providing a voice for seldom heard residents and providing community 
intelligence.  

 a recognition of the great diversity of the sector and the need to engage with 
small and emerging groups as well as large established organisations.  

 a recognition of the sector’s potential to take risks and innovate which does not 
always sit easily within commissioning frameworks.  

 a recognition that third sector organisations have been key delivery partners for a 
wide range of targeted short term initiatives. Grant aid provides a level of security 
for organisations ensuring that there is a strong sector ready to work in 
partnership with us.  

 
 
4. Main Grants background  
 
4.1 The current main grants programme 2015-2018 was agreed by Mayor and Cabinet 

Contracts on 13 May 2015. Funding was provided over four themes:  

 strong and cohesive communities  

 communities that care  

 access to advice services  

 widening access to arts and sports 
 
4.2 Due to the overall financial position of the Council Mayor and Cabinet agreed to 

reduce the funding to the grants programme by £1m from 1 April 2017. This equated 
to around 25% of the overall main grants budget.  
 

4.3 Following consultation with the sector, in July 2016 the Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) agreed that a full re-letting of the current programme was not appropriate 
and that officers should seek to realise the saving from the existing funding 
allocations through the activity outlined below in order of precedence:  

 
1. Remove funding from under-performing groups/those performing least well  
2. Negotiate reductions and seek alternative funding streams  

Page 11



3. Work with groups to consider mergers or asset sharing  
4. Pro-rata reductions across all groups  

 
4.4 In recognition of the fact that groups with funding agreements for three years faced 

reductions during that period it was agreed that the revised settlement would be 
extended for a further year through to 31 March 2019.  

 
4.5 Following formal meetings with all funded groups, officers developed funding 

recommendations which were agreed by Mayor & Cabinet (Contracts) on 7 
December 2016, following appeals. A total of 59 grants were recommended for 
funding; the majority with a pro-rata cut of 15.3%. Four organisations were de-
funded.  

 
 
5. Main Grant funding for Boxing 
 
5.1 In 2015 The London Amateur Boxing Alliance (ABA) was awarded £20,000 per 

annum funding under the widening access to arts and sports theme.  
 

5.2 Despite positive performance data it become apparent that London Amateur Boxing 
Alliance (ABA) had broken away from the only recognised National Governing Body 
(NGB) ‘England Boxing.’ The London region of England Boxing is now called London 
Boxing.  

 
5.3 London Sport and London Boxing have highlighted that clubs working with the 

Alliance would not be able to access Sport England funding or any other major 
funding that is linked to involvement with the NGB. 

 
5.4 Officers spoke to representatives of the ABA who recognised that this made their 

council funding untenable and agreed that this would mean they could no longer be 
funded although they will continue to promote boxing in the borough.  

 
 
6. Funding to London Sport for boxing  
 
6.1 It was recommended at the Mayor & Cabinet (Contracts) on 7 December 2016 that 

the London ABA were defunded but funding (£15,000) would be ring fenced for 
boxing support in the borough. This would include developing provision in the south 
of the borough, following the closure of Palmers, and support to Double Jab in the 
north of the borough.  

 
6.2 Officers have been working with London Sport, London Boxing and England Boxing 

(the NGB) to develop this support. 
 
6.3 It is recommended that London Sport are awarded £15,000 for 2017/18, although this 

is to be a one year allocation initially to allow for a full evaluation of the new 
approach. London Sport work very closely with London Boxing and England Boxing 
and have a dedicated boxing development officer.  

 
6.4 London Sport have submitted a full Main Grants application which outlines what they 

will deliver. This includes:  
 

 Working with Double Jab Amateur Boxing Club (as the only affiliated boxing club 
in Lewisham) to become a ‘beacon’ club for the borough. This includes 

Page 12



supporting the club to grow, deliver more sessions and set up ‘hub sites’ in 
targeted wards in the borough.  

 Grow and sustain participation in boxing across the borough; particularly in the 
south where there is high demand but little or no organised provision. Delivery of 
‘box-fit’ type non-contact / fitness based boxing, with routes then into Double Jab 
or a hub site. Focused delivery will include women and girls, older adults, and low 
income families.  

 Community engagement days and taster sessions in various parts of the borough 
using a mobile boxing arena 

 Working in partnership with schools, FE colleges and sports makers to increase 
the number of 14-25 year olds attracted to and retained in the sport; through 
teacher training, awards programmes, links to clubs, peer group leadership and 
sourcing coaches.  

 
6.5 A copy of London Sport’s outcomes and outputs for 2017/18 can be found in 

appendix 1.  
 
 
7. Financial Implications  
 
7.1  This report proposes allocation of the main grant funding of £15,000 to London Sport 

for 2017/18. This is contained within the overall Main Grants programme budget 
which was agreed by Mayor & Cabinet (Contracts) on 7 December 2016.  

 
 
8.  Legal Implications  
 
8.1  Under S1 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council has a general power of competence 

to do anything which an individual may do unless it is expressly prohibited. 
 
8.2 The giving of grants to voluntary organisations is a discretionary power which must 

be exercised reasonably taking into account all relevant considerations and ignoring 
irrelevant considerations.  

 
8.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the decisions required in this report are 

reserved to Members.  
 
8.4  The Equality Act 2012 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 

equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  

 
8.5  In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 

need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act.  

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not.  

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not.  

 
8.6  The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a 

matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. It is 

Page 13



not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of 
opportunity or foster good relations. 

 
8.7  The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled 
Practice”. The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to 
the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the 
equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities should do 
to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well as 
recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless 
regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling reason would be of 
evidential value. The statutory code and the technical guidance can be found at 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-actcodes-
of-practice-and-technical-guidance/  

 
8.8  The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five 

guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  

 The essential guide to the public sector equality duty  

 Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

 Engagement and the equality duty  

 Equality objectives and the equality duty  

 Equality information and the equality duty  
 
8.9  The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including 

the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what 
public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, 
as well as recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed 
guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and 
resources are available at http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-
guidance/public-sectorequality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/  

 
 
9.  Crime and Disorder Implications  
 
9.1  A number of the groups funded through the Main Grants programme work with 

people who may be involved with or at risk of entering into the criminal justice 
system. London Sport will be working closely with Double Jab Boxing Club in the 
north of the borough, and developing other boxing provision. Double Jab work with 
young disadvantaged people providing them not only with boxing coaching but 
support with employment and training.  

 
 
10.  Equalities Implications  
 
10.1  A full equalities impact assessment was undertaken on the Main Grants Allocations 

for 2015 - 18. This included the boxing grant allocation to the ABA.  
 
10.2  This award to London Sport follows the same principles as the previous grant to the 

ABA. As Mayor and Cabinet agreed that the overall allocation process for 2015-18 
was respected as part of the savings process the main findings of that assessment 
have been reassessed and are considered to be sound.  

 
 
 

Page 14

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-actcodes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-actcodes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sectorequality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sectorequality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/


11.  Environmental Implications  
 
11.1  There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report. 
 
 
12. Conclusion 
 
10.1  The Council sought to realise £1m savings from 1 April 2017 from the Main Grants 

budget. The Amateur Boxing Association was de-funded as part of this process and 
£15,000 ring fenced for boxing support in the borough. This report recommends the 
award of that £15,000 to London Sport for 2017/18.  

 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
 
For further information on this report please contact Petra Marshall, Community 
Resources Manager on 020 8314 7034 or at petra.marshall@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

mailto:petra.marshall@lewisham.gov.uk


Appendix 1: London Sport Outcomes and Outputs  
 
 

Outcomes Outputs How you will measure outcomes 

1. Club Development & Support  

a) Tenancy Agreement – to make 

Double Jab financially secure so they 

can meet all of their ongoing costs 

including staffing and premises 

 

Work with the boxing club and Lewisham 

Council to agree an affordable rent for the 

club, negotiate terms of lease agreement; 

and support the group to become more 

financially sustainable. 

 

The club will have a signed tenancy agreement at the 

Moonshot Centre. Double Jab to be generating (by 

means of additional income generation, new funding, 

income from Hub sites etc). Sufficient revenue to afford 

the agreed rent p.a. This will be measured by a robust 

cashflow forecast, to be reviewed on a month by 

month basis. 

b) Workforce Development – To identify 

and train additional workforce to 

support club sessions and further 

outreach: 1 x new level 2 coach; 2 x 

new level 1 coaches; deliver 1 x BOX 

course at Double Jab for community 

outreach. 

Identify suitable coaches and volunteers 

willing to coach and support community 

sessions linked to the club. Upskill the 

coaches and volunteers to deliver sessions. 

 

Newly qualified Level 1 and 2 coaches / BOX 

Instructors. Successful delegates are coaching at 

Double Jab / and or delivering community sessions. 

The BOX Instructors will deliver a minimum of 10 x 

community coaching hours, post qualification. 

c) Income Generation – To provide 

advice and practical support to 

Double Jab to diversify and increase 

their income.  

Brainstorm and analysis any additional 

streams of income. Work with the club to 

ensure these are implemented in stages, to 

ensure maximum revenue can be generated 

to continue the great work the club is doing. 

The club income has grown by a minimum of 50% by 

April 2018. The income will be used to support 

additional sessions, Head Coach and Sessional Coach 

fees. 

 

d) Funding Support – To support the 

club in identifying suitable funding 

streams and support the funding 

applications. 

Identify suitable funding streams the club can 

apply for. Support the funding bid by 

providing, support and insight where 

necessary, review of the funding bid 

applications. 

The club have identified and submitted 2 ‘targeted’ 

funding bids designed to increase participation, and 

increase club revenue. 

 

P
age 16



2. Develop Community ‘Hub’ 

Sites/Sessions 

a) Develop Community Hub sites with a 

possible focus on delivering sessions 

to different demographics within the 

community (e.g. Women and Girls 

only sessions, separate session for 

those with Mental Health Issues, 

sessions to target Childhood Obesity). 

 

With Double Jab operating almost at capacity 

in the Moonshot, there is scope to develop 2 

hub sites, focussing on different needs within 

the community. These sessions will be run by 

club coaches, 

 

2 x ‘themed’ community hubs sites up and running, 

delivering weekly sessions, targeting two of the 

following 3 groups: Women and Girls; Mental Health 

Issues and Child. A small charge for these will be 

introduced to support the sustainability. Monitoring 

data will be gathered and used to capture the impact of 

these sessions.  

 

3. Develop new boxing provision in 

South of the Borough 

a) Develop new boxing sessions in the 

south of the borough where there is 

no current provision and wards known 

to be problem areas. Boxing sessions 

to be developed in 3 of the following 

wards: Bellingham, Sydenham, 

Palmers, Catford South, Downham 

 
 
Using borough insight data, identify 3 wards 
that are suitable to deliver boxing provision. 
Identify suitable venues where the sessions 
can take place. Work with key partners and 
agencies in the south, to develop boxing. 
 
 
 
 

 

3 community sites in the borough are delivering weekly 

(or maybe twice weekly) sessions. Registers and 

monitoring data will be used to measure the impact of 

these session & the impact on the local area. 

 

4. Develop new Satellite Club in 

South of the Borough 

a) Develop a school or college satellite 

club, as part of PE curriculum or after 

school activity. 

 

 

Develop a 36 week (once weekly), boxing 

provision at a school or HE college. The 

sessions are also open to those outside of 

the school/college. 

 

The sessions will run for three years’ maximum, with 

training provided for teachers (or participants if a 

college) to coach and support leading the sessions. 

The sessions will attract a minimum of 12 participants. 

 

P
age 17



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\1\9\6\ai00016691\$a0atk4vs.doc 

 

MAYOR & CABINET CONTRACTS 
 

Report Title 
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 

Key Decision 
 

No  Item No.  

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive (Head of Business & Committee) 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: April 19 2017 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act, as amended by the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (Amendments) 
(England) Regulations 2006 and the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information:- 
 
 

 5. Provision of Passenger Transport Services 
 
 6. New Homes Programme Update Former Edward Street MUGA 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\6\AI00016691\$n5cty2xb.doc 

 
 

FAILURE TO GIVE NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT 
BUSINESS IN PRIVATE 

 
MAYOR AND CABINET CONTRACTS will meet on WEDNESDAY 19 April 
2017 at 5.50 pm in the CIVIC SUITE, LEWISHAM TOWN HALL, CATFORD, 
SE6 4RU. 
 
Mayor and Cabinet Contracts will consider a report on the key decision 
shown below. However the report has not been included in a Notice of 
Intention giving the public 28 clear days notice of a proposal to consider 
executive business in closed session. 
 
In accordance with Rule G 16(c) of the Council’s Constitution this proposed 
meeting can only go ahead if the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee agrees it is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred. 
 
 

 Award of contract for young people’s health and wellbeing service 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Barry Quirk      For further information please 
Chief Executive     contact the Committee Officer: 
Date: 7 April 2017                                                 Kevin Flaherty 
Lewisham Town Hall    Governance Support 
London SE6 4RU     Tel. No. 020 8-314-9327 
 

 
 

MAYOR AND CABINET CONTRACTS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The public are welcome to attend our Committee meetings, however, occasionally, committees may 
have to consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made in additional formats on 
request. 
. 

 

Page 19



Document is Restricted

Page 20

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 36

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 178

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 179

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Declaration of Interests
	2 Minutes
	Minutes March 22
	Minutes


	3 Main Grants 2017-18 - London Boxing Allocation
	Main Grants 2017-18 - London Boxing Allocation

	4 Exclusion of Press and Public
	Notice of failure to give intention of private business

	5 Provision of Passenger Transport Services
	Provision of Passenger Transport Services

	6 New Homes Programme Update Former Edward Street MUGA
	New Homes Programme Update Former Edward Street MUGA
	APPENDIX A (New Homes Programme  Edward Street Fee Proposal

	7 Award of Contract of Young People's Health and Wellbeing Service
	YPHWS Contract Award


